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complaint.
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IN THE CHANCERY COURT OF RANKIN COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI
- R X

Jim Hood, Attorney General, ex rel. Civil Action No. 58571
State of Mississippi, :

Plaintiff,
v : : ,
F. Hoffrnaﬁ~La Roche, Lid. -_ i AMENDED COMPLAINT
Héffrhan—La Ro'che, Inc. - . . '
BASFSE
Sanbﬁ;Aventis |
Aventis, Inc.
Eisai Co., Ltd.
Fisai, Inc.
Takeda Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Daiichi Sankyo Co., Ltd.

Defendants

AMENDED COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, by and through his undersigned attorneys, brings this action on behalf of the

State of Mississippi, in its proprietary capacity and in its capacity as parens patriae, for damages,

penalties and injunctive relief under the laws of the State of Mississippi against the above-named

defendants.

I. NATURE OF THIS ACTION

1. This case arises out of a massive and long-running international conspiracy among

all defendants with the purpose and effect of fixing prices, allocating market share, and




committing other unlawful practices designed to inflate the prices of vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2,
B3, B5, B6, B9, B12, H, beta carotene, astaxanthin, canthaxanthin and vitamin premixes sold to
plaintiff and other purchasers in the United States, including Mississippi, and elsewhere. Asa
result of their illegal activities, certain defendants and have pleaded guilty to violating Section 1
of the Sherman Act, 15 U S.C.§ 1, by pamclpatlng ina conspiracy to fix prlces and allocate the
Voiume of sales of vitamins and vitamin premlxes in the United States and othervmse actzng in :
v1olé1:1on of the law Defendants acts consututed per se vzolanons of Sectlon 1 of the Sherman
'Act 15USC§1 | | | |

2. Defendan.t'r;" éOnspiracjf invo.lved".an astonishinig array of iHégaI conauct by an
international cartel that deliberately targeted, and severely burdened, purchasers in the United
States, including Mississippi. The conspiracy existed at least during the period from 1990 to
1999, and affected billions of dollars of commerce in products. The conspiracy included
hundreds of communicaﬁi__()ns and meetings in which defendants agreed expressly and repeatedly
to eliminate competition, to inj ure and destroy businesses that would have redu_éed defendants'
illegal market control, and to fix the prices and allocate markets for vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B3,
BS5, B6, B9, B12, H, beta carotene, astaxanthin, canthaxanthin and vitamin premixes.

3. Defendants' actions comprise an overarching conspiracy and cartel which included
the foregoing vitamins. In the alternative, Defendants’ actions constitute a group of related and
separate cartels for the foregoing vitamins.

II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4. Plaintiff brings this action under the Mississippi Antitrust Act, Miss. Code Ann.
§ 75-21, and the Mississippi Consumer Protection Act, Miss. Code Ann. § 75-24, to recover

actual damages, injunctive relief, statutory penalties, and the costs of suit, including reasonable



attorneys' fees, against defendants for the injuries sustained by plaintiff by reason of defendants
violations of the Mississippi Antitrust Act and the Mississippi Consumer Protection Act.

5. No federal jurisdiction exists because no claim alleged in this Complaint arises
under any federal law, treaty or the Constitution; nor is the Attorney General, as an alter ego of
the' state Qf Misgissippi, a citizen for purposes of diveijgity jurisdiction. This action is also not

| i:;rouglit to recover ilér‘riagés or other relief that maSk be owed By any parﬁ(‘:ular‘ individu’al:
6. Veniie is proper in Rankm Coilnty pursuarit,tq Misg;. Code Ann. §§11-1 1:—3 & 75-
24115, | o - | ‘

7. Jurisdiction oxier all defendants coﬁiports with the United States Constitution and
Miss. Code Ann. §§ 75-21-1 and 75-24-5 and the Mississippt long-arm statute, Miss. Code Ann. §
13-3-57.

1. PARTIES

8. Plaintiff Jim Hood is the Attorney General of the State of Mississippi. He brings
this case on behalf of the Siate of Mississippi in its sovereign capaciiy for injuries the State has
sustained as purchasers and in the State’s capacity as parens patriae, for the adverse effect on
Mississippi purchasers.

9. F. Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd. (“Roche L1d.”), is a Swiss corporation with
operations in the United States. Roche Ltd. is a subsidiary of Roche Holding Ltd., a Swiss
pharmaceutical company based in Basel, Switzerland. During the applicable period, Roche Ltd.,
through its affiliates, was engaged in the business of the distribution and sale of vitamins A, C, E,
B1, B2, B6, H, astaxanthin, beta carotene, calpan, canthaxanthin and folic acid, and vitamin
premixes throughout the United States and elsewhere, including in the State of Mississippi.

10. Roche 1td., directly and through affiliates that it dominates and controls, and



through actions in this country and outside the United States, set prices and allocated markets
pursuant to illegal horizontal agreements and these horizontal practices were designed to have and
did have a substantial and adverse impact within the United States, including in the State of
Mississippi. As aresult of its illegal activities, Roche Ltd has pleaded guilty to violating Section
1 Qf the S_herman Act, 15 U.S.C. §1, and has agreed to pay .a:$500,,000,000,crimina1 fine to the |
| -'United States Depai*tniént" ofJ ﬁstice ;'the 'la."rgés.t ﬁné ever paid in an antitrust ‘investigation“_ fdi' ;
) 'conspirac-y to ﬁx.the pfice and al’locate the sales of ﬁtaniins sold in ;fhe United Sir;ltc;:s.‘ |
11. | Hoffmann La Roche, Inc (“Roche Inc ”), is a New J ersey corporat:on thh its
' prmmpal place of busmess in Nutley, New Jersey. Roche Inc. is an afﬁhate of Roche Ltd Roche |
Inc. is wholly-controlied and dominated by Roche Ltd, both with respect to the conduct of its
business within the United States generally and specifically with respect to its challenged
horizontal conduct within the United States. During the applicable period, Roche Inc. was
directly engaged in the business of the distribution and sale of vitamins A, C, E, Bl, B2, BS, B6,
B9, H, beta carotene, astaxanthin, Canthakanthin and vitamin prémixes throughout'the' United
States, including in the State of Mississippi, and elsewhere until at least 1997.
12.  BASF SE (Societas Europaea) is a German corporation with operations in the
United States. During the applicable period, BASF SE, through its affiliates, was engaged in the
business of the distribution and sale of vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B5, beta carotene, astaxanthin
and canthaxanthin, and vitamin premixes throughout the United States, including in the State of
Mississippi, and elsewhere. BASF SE is the successor to BASF Aktiengesellschaft (BASF AGl).
13, BASF SE, directly and through affiliates that it dominates and controls, and
through actions in this country and outside the United States, has set prices and allocated markets

pursuant to illegal horizontal agreements, and these horizontal practices were designed to have



and did have a substantial and adverse impact within the United States, including in the State of
Mississippi. As a result of its illegal activities, BASF SE has agreed to plead guilty to violating
Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. §1, and has agreed to pay a $225,000,000 fine to the
United States Department of Justice — the second largest fine ever paid in an antitrust
investigation.

14, Sanoﬁ-Avent1s (“Avenns”) is al French holdlng corporatlon w1th oﬁéraﬂong inthe

United States It is the successor to Rhone Pouienc S. A (“RP S A. ”) Durmg the apphcable

| ‘perlod RP S A. through 1ts afﬁhates, was engaged in the busmess of the dlstnbutlon and sale of
vitamins A, E and BX 2, and vitamin premlxes throughout the world and 'elsewhe‘re during the
period covered by this complaint. RP S.A., directly and through affiliates that it dominated and
controlled, and through actions in this country and outside the United States, set prices and
allocated markets pursuant to illegal horizontal agreements, and these horizontal practices were
designed to have and did have a substantial and adverse impact in the United States, including in
fhe State of Missigsippi.- During the conspiracy,.RP S.A. wholly cohtroiied'ahd‘dominated a
company called Rhone-Poulenc Animal Nutrition, Inc. (“RP Animal Nutrition™), which was a
Delaware corporation with its principal place of business in Atlanta, Georgia, both with respect to
the conduct of its business within the United States generally and specifically with respect to its
challenged horizontal conduct within the United States. RP Animal Nutrition was a successor to
defendant Rhone-Poulenc, Inc. (“RP Inc.”), a New York corporation with operations in the United
States. From at least 1998, RP Animal Nutrition was directly engaged in the business of the
distribution and sale of vitamins A, E and B12, and vitamin premixes throughout the United
States, including in the State of Mississippi, and elsewhere.

15.  Sanofi-Aventis U.S., Inc. (“Aventis U.8.”) is a Delaware corporation with its



principle place of business in Bridgewater, New Jersey. Aventis U.S. is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Aventis. Aventis U.S. is the successor to Aventis Pharmaceuticals, Inc., which was
itself the successor to RP Inc., a New York corporation which also had its principal place of
business in Bridgewater, New Jersey. During the applicable period, RP Inc. was engaged in the
businese of the distributior} and sale of \{itamin_s A? E and B12, and yitamin premixes thr_eughout ,
. the United States , including in the State of Mississippi, and elseWhefe mitil at least l992§ RP Tnc.
lwas whoily—controlled and dominated by RP S.A., both wnh respect to the conduct of i 1ts ’ousmess
in the Unlted States generally and spec1ﬁcaﬁy with respect to its. challenged horlzonta} conduct o
" within the Um‘ted States. Aventls, Aventis U.S., RP S.A., RP Inc., and RP Animal Nutrltion ere
hereinafter referred to as “Aventis.”

16.  Eisai Co., Ltd. (“Eisai Ltd.”) is a Japanese corporation with operations in the
United States. During the applicable period, Eisai 1td., through its affiliates, was engaged in the
busmess of the distribution and sale of vitamins, mcludmg vitamin E, throughout the United
States, including in the State of Mlsszsmppl and elsewhere. Eisai Ltd dlrectly and through
affiliates that it dominates and controls, and through actions in this country and outside the United
States, set prices and allocated markets for vitamins, including vitamin E, pursuant to illegal
horizontal agreements, and these horizontal practices were designed to have and in fact did have a
substantial and adverse impact in the United States, including in the State of Mississippi. Asa
result of its illegal activities, Eisai Ltd. has pleaded guilty to violating Section 1 of the Sherman
Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1, and has agreed to pay a $40 million criminal fine for conspiring to fix the
price and allocate the sales of vitamin E sold in the United States.

17.  Eisai, Inc. (“Eisai Inc.”) is a Delaware corporation with operations in the United

States and its principal place of business in Woodcliff Lake, New Jersey. During the relevant



period, Eisai Inc. was engaged in the business of the distribution and sale of vitamins, including
vitamin E, throughout the United States and elsewhere. Eisai Inc. is a wholly-owned affiliate of
defendant Eisai Ltd. Eisai Inc. is wholly-controlled and dominated by Eisai Ltd, both with
respect to the conduct of its business within the United States generally and specifically with
respect to its challenged horizontal conduct within the Unitgd States. Eisai Inc. is the successor to
R ‘Hisai Cor-poreﬁion of North Meﬁca.' Defehdéﬁts Eisai Ltd. and Eisai Inct are h’ereinaf&:r referred
to as “Fisai.” |
- 18. ‘ Takeda Pharmaceutmal Co., Ltd (“Takeda Ltd ”) isal apanese corporatlon w1th
operatlons in the United States Durmg the appllcable period, Takeda Ltd. through its afﬁhates
was engaged in the business of the distribution and sale of vitamins, including vita.mins C, Bl,
B2, B6, and folic acid, throughout the world and elsewhere during the period of this complaint.
Takeda Ltd., directly and through affiliates that it dominates and controls, and through actions in
this cpunpry and outside the United States, set prices and alllocated markets for vitamins, including
‘yitamins C, Bl1,B2, 36, and folicl:racid, pursuarit to ilrl_egal horizontal agreements, and these
horizontal practices were designed to have and did have a substantial and adverse impact within
the United States, including in the State of Mississippi, As a result of its illegal activities, Takeda
Ltd. has pleaded guilty to violating Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1, and has agreed
to pay a $72 million criminal fine for conspiring to fix the price and allocate the sales of vitamin
B2 and vitamin C sold in the United States.
19.  Daiichi Sankyo Co., Ltd. (“Daiichi Sankyo™), successor through merger to Daiichi
Pharmaceutical Company, Ltd. (“Daiichi Ltd.”), is a Japanese corporation with operations in the
United States. During the applicable pertod, Daiichi Ltd., through its affiliates, was engaged in

the business of the distribution and sale of vitamins, including vitamin B5 (calpan) and vitamin



B6, throughout the United States, including in the State of Mississippi, and elsewhere. Daiichi
Ltd., directly and through affiliates that it dominates and controls, and through actions in this
country and outside the ‘United States, set prices and allocated markets for vitamins, including
vitamin B5 (calpan) and vitamin B6, pursuant to illegal horizontal agreements, and these
horizontal practices were designed to have and in fact ‘did have a substantial and adverse impact
| Withiﬁ the Uni‘.ced'Stétes,ri.ncluding in the State of Missiséiijpi. As a result of its illegal activities, )
‘Dauchl Ltd has pleaded gulity to v1olat1ng Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15U.S.C. .§ 1, and has .
agreed to pay $25 milhon for conspmng to ﬁx the price and allocate the sales of vitamin BS sold '
in the United Statés. | | |

20.  The acts charged in this Complaint as having been done by dsfendants were
authorized, ordered or done by their officers, agents, employees, or representatives, while actively
engaged in the management of defendants' business or affairs.

- IV. PARENS PATRIAE ALLEGATIONS

- 21; - The State of Mississippi, acting through its Atforney General, brings this acﬁon by
virtue of its duty to protect its quasi-sovereign interests, specifically the general welfare and
economic condition of the State and its citizens, acting herein as parens patriae, trustee, guardian
and representative of its citizens, to recover damages for, and secure injunctive relief against, the
violations of the laws herein alleged.

22.  The Attorney General is a constitutional officer possessed of all the power and
authority inherited from the common law as well as that specifically conferred upon him by
statute. This includes the right to institute, conduct and maintain all suits necessary for the
enforcement of the laws of the State, preservation of order, and the protection of public rights.

The Attorney General is authorized to bring this action on behalf of the State of Mississippi as



parens patriae.

23.  Mississippi has a sovereign interest in protecting its consumers and its economy
and ensuring that participants in its economy do not engage in anticompetitive behavior. This
interest is evidenced by the Legislature’s decision to pass Acts prohibiting anticompetitive and
unfgir competition.

24, Mississippi hasi a sovereign interest in :eﬁforciﬁg A_ct.é; violations of which the" |
Attorney Generai is granted éuthoxity i‘o‘.pr‘ésécﬁt'e.

. o TRADE AND COMMERCE

25 beféndanfs are manufacturers éf rav:v vitamins (of various kinds and in various
forms including synthetic and natural and dry and liquid form) and vitamin premixes for bulk
sales to customers. During the relevant period, they sold vitamins to food and pharmaceutical
manufacturers for human consumption. The vitamins manufactured by defendants and their co-
conspirators were commonly used as an ingredient in the production of vitamins packaged for
consumer use under major brand narﬁes. Defenéants aiso sold vitaﬁins and vitamin premixeé to
manufacturers and users of animal feed and nutrition products. The vitamin premixes and other
bulk vitamin products manufactured by defendants were commonly used as an ingredient in
animal nutrition products and animal feed premixes.

26.  The manufacture of vitamins and vitamin premixes is a multi-billion dollar a year
industry worldwide. The North American market for animal nutrition alone was an over $500
million per year industry in 2000. The worldwide conspiracy involving vitamins affected billions
of dollars of commerce in products found in nearly every American household.

27.  During the period described in this Complaint, the world markets for vitamins A,

C,E, B1, B2, B3, BS, B6, B9, B12, H, beta carotene, astaxanthin, canthaxanthin and vitamin



premixes were dominated by defendants.

28.  During the period described in this Complaint, the conduct of defendants took
place in and affected the commerce of the State of Mississippi.

29.  During the period described in the Complaint, defendants entered and performed
illegal agreements and contracts to fix prices that included prices in the State of Mississippi.
Defendants also entered and performed illegai agfeéménts aﬁd contracts to allocate ﬁarkeié and
saleé vol@es that iﬁclude_,d the Siate of 'Missi_ssippi.. |

| '3“0.- . | The‘c.(.)nduct‘qf d'e.feric.ia_z_atshasi .dilr'eétly, sﬁbstantiaily and fdrcseeabiy restrained
such trade ana commerce in MisSiésippi, increased the priée of \lfitamirlls in ‘Miésissipp‘i,'harrned =
consumers in Mississippi, and hindered competition in the production, importation, and sale of
vitamins in Mississippi.

VI. FACTUAL BACKGROUND

‘A, Violation of Antitrust Laws
- 31.  Beginning no later than 1990, def-éndants entéred inio and engage& ina |
combination and conspiracy to suppress competition by fixing the price and allocating the
markets and sales volumes of vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B3, BS, B6, B9, B12, H, beta carotene,
astaxanthin, canthaxanthin and vitamin premixes offered for sale to customers in the United
States, Mississippi and elsewhere. The combination and conspiracy engaged in by the defendants
was an unreasonable restraint of trade and commerce in violation of the Mississippi Antitrust Act,
Miss. Code Ann. § 75-21-1.
32.  The combination and conspiracy consisted of a continuing agreement,

understanding, and concert of action among the conspirators, the substantial terms of which were:

(a)  to agree to fix and maintain prices and/or to coordinate price increases for



the sale of vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B3, B5, B6, B9, B12, H, beta carotene, astaxanthin,
canthaxanthin, and vitamin premixes in Mississippi and elsewhere;
(b) to agree to allocate the volumes of sales of, and markets for vitamins A, C,
E, B1,B2, B3, BS, B6, B9, B12, H, beta carotene, astaxanthin, canthaxanthin, and vitamin
premlxes among the corporate consp:rators in Mississippi and elsewhere, and.
B (¢) to control the maxkets for v1tam1n premlxes in MlSSlSSlppl and elseﬁhere
| 3l3.. As a result of these 1ilega£ aets, certam defendants enumerated above have pleaded |

'guﬂty to v1oiat1ng Sectlon 1 of the Sherman Act 15U. S C § 1 and pald substant1a1 ﬁnes in

 comnection with such guilty pleas. =

I. Horizontal Agreements to Fix Prices and Allocate Markets

34.  For purposes of forming and carrying out the charged combination and conspiracy,
defendants, including their executives from both United States and foreign affiliates, participated
in covert meetmgs and conversations beginning in or before the 1990s and continuing throughout
the 1990s, in the United States, Canada Mexico, Europe and elsewhere, in which the prices,
volume of sales, and markets for vitamins and vitamin premixes were discussed and agreed.
Executives and co-conspirators participating in these meetings and discussions included Roland
Bronnimann, Andreas Hauri, Wilhelm Tell, Edmund McDonald, Kuno Sommers, and Oscar
Mendoza of Roche; Lloyd Curtis, Werner Schaefer, Peter Haag, Dr. Reinhard Steinmetz, Dietz
Kaminski, Dr. Dieter Suter, and Hugo Strotmann of BASF; and others. Further, for purpose of
carrying out the charged combination and conspiracy, defendants issued price announcements in
publications and coordinated price quotations to customers in accordance with the agreements
reached.

35. At the above-described meetings and during the period of the conspiracy,



defendants agreed to and did eliminate, suppress, and limit competition, including by:

(a) discussing the prices and volumes of vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B3, B3, B6, B9,
B12, H, astaxanthin, beta carotene, canthaxanthin and vitamin premixes;

(b)  agreeing to increase and maintain prices of vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B3, B3, B6,
B9, B12, H, beta carotene, astaxanthin, canthaxanthin and vitamin premixes; 7

“(c) 'lagreeing to ailécat'e'markets fer.vitaﬁiin prémixel:s'a-‘nd Vitﬁmin ingredienfs fér suc'h‘ "

p‘fémikes; and * - | - - .

(d) o ‘ﬁiscussiﬁg and agreeing on methods to conceal th'cirl agreeéments aﬁd“éoncert'éd"' .
| conduct. ” | |

36.  For purpéses of f‘orm‘ing and carrying out the charged combihation and
conspiracy, defendants, including their executives from both United States and foreign affiliates,
have participated in meetings and conversations in the United States and elsewhere in which it
was agreed to allocate among the corporate conspirators the Vql.umes of sales of, and markets for,
 vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B3, BS, B6, B9, B12, H, beta carotene, astaxanthin, canthaxanthin and
vitamin premixes to be sold by each corporate conspirator in the United States and elsewhere.
The conspiracy divided and allocated such markets by region and by vitamin and was
implemented by defendants' executives, including United States marketing managers acting under
instructions from foreign executives.

37.  Further, for purposes of carrying out the charged international combination and
conspiracy,

(a) Defendants held annual meetings in Europe to fix prices and allocate

markets in the United States. The meetings generally took place in August or September over a

few days at a hotel in Europe or at the home of an executive;



(b)  Defendants communicated in secret following such meetings on at least a quarterly
basis to fix prices and allocate markets.

38.  Defendants issued price announcements in accordance with the agreements, and
participated in meetings and conversations to monitor and enforce adherence to the agreed-upon
prices and sales volumes.

39, Prices for'vifarniﬁs A and E fell dramétiCaIIy during thé late 1980s as a résult of “
competition and because of éggressive pricing by &éfendantlEi'sai in 1§89. R'oéhe BASI*‘“:and N
RhonemPouienc held meetings durmg the summer and fall of 1989, mcludmg June 7 1989 and
September 1989 to set up a cartel to mciude vitaming A and E. The compames agree toan
allocation of world and reg1ona1 market shares. The undérlymg objective of the meeting was to
stabilize the world market share of each producer with market shares frozen at 1988 levels and
increases in shares with market expansion based on agreed quotas. Specific pricing levels were
also discussed. The Chairman of the Fine Chemicals Division and heads of Vitamins Marketing
'or the equivalent épproved the agreé'ments at the meeting.i ;

40.  During the fall of 1989, the three producers held a followup meeting in which they
agreed to market share quotas broken down country by country, including the United States and
therefore Mississippi. The parties to this agreement estimated 1990 market shares and agreed to
sales allocations on a tonnage basis for each national market, including the United States. Sales
in Mississippi counted towards the sales allocations for the United States.

41. After a meeting with Roche, in October 1990, Eisai executives confirmed that their
company was prepared to join the cartel, called the “Club.” Eisai was thereafter included in the

scheme for allocation of sales volumes and price increases for vitamin E Roche, BASF and



Rhone-Poulenc also met with Eisai in Japan in January 1991 and after to agree on worldwide
volume allocations and quotas for vitamin E.

42. The cartel members also referred to themselves as Vitamins, Inc.

As the cartel developed, a structure of regular meetings evolved. There were four levels.

a Top ie_yel meetings took place annually (usua}ly in August), and included
 the mdst seniér corpd;ate Qfﬁcers;‘with resppnsibi'lity for__ﬁie vitamins bu’siﬁess, to‘ éet qﬁdtas arid |
‘agree' on pri_cing 1eveis.

b | ) lThé sécond.ie:vel fﬁeétigés_ tooi{ place two to three times a Yéar and
included the heads of vitamins marketing (who might also attend the top level meetings) who
made decisions on the operation of the agreements and finalized budgets.
C. The third level consisted of managers who met quarterly to monitor the
implementation of quotas.
od. The fourth level consisted of meetings of regional heads of marketing held
about four timés a-year which included discussioné pricing for individual cuétomérs, inclﬁding_
customers in the United States and Mississippi. The regional heads of market exchanged
information each month and had weekly telephone contact to monitor the agreements on pricing
and sales volumes and to discuss individual customers.

43.  The cartel prepared an annual budget in which prices and price increases were
decided, including prices for the United States, including Mississippi. Budgets were agreed upon
at top level meetings and finalized in the second half of each year.

44, Once the cartel structure was in place for key vitamins, Defendants went about
taking control of the rest of the vitamins industry. As set forth in the criminal information, to

which Roche and BASF pleaded guilty, the conspiracy “involved a changing group of



conspirators and effected . . . a changing group of vitamins at various points in time . . . its cope
adjusting over time to the manufacturers producing certain vitamins.”

45.  Roche and BASF were the joint leaders and instigators of the collusive
arrangements affecting the range of vitamin products at issue in this Complaint. A key result of
the antiqompetitive agreements in each of ‘the vitamin prodggt markets_was to combine the market
a f;owér 1ﬂx:et1: eéch pérticipant held in“ee.lch of the individual 'rnarkéts. |
46, Rocfaé and BA_SFand others expahded the cartel and the fbuf level meetings
during and after 1991 vitamins A and E, to'include vitamin H (blotin) astaianthin; befa carotene,
andl éanthaxahthih. o

47. Roche and BASF and 6thers expanded .the cartel and the four level meetings
during and after 1991 vitamins A and E, to include vitamin premixes.

48.  The modus operandi for different vitamins products was essential same if not
identical - (bgdgets, market share agreements, compensation arrangenents, target and minimum
prices, meéting structureé. etc. The effective starting_pbint for the cartel arraf_xgem_énts waé the
same for the other vitamins named in this Complaint as vitamins A and E. The price increases for
the great majority of different vitamins were usually announced and made on the same occasion.

49.  Efforts to expand the cartel required the participants of other companies. Eisai did
not attend multilateral meetings and instead participated in the cartel through separate
communications with Roche. Following multilateral meetings of European manufacturers, Roche
would meet one to two weeks later with Eisai. Eisai and Roche exchanged sales information on a
worldwide basis, including the United States and Mississippi. Through these meetings, Fisai
acted to respect the position and status of the other cartel members. One Eisai executive wrote in

1994: “We have never deviated from the fundamental agreements and understanding.”



50.  InJanuary 1991, Roche, BASF and Takeda initiated cartel meetings for vitamins
including vitamins E, B1 (thiamin), B6 and C. The purpose of the agreement to increase prices
by stabilizing market shares and allocating sales volumes. Roche also put forward a plan for sales
quotas and minimum prices for folic acid, to which Takeda agreed, and asked Takeda to
coordmate w1th other Japanese producers of folic ac1d

51, After the first meetmg, Roche and Takeda executlves 'met regulérly at both the tép |

' 1evel and the operauonal Ievel to monitor agreed quotas and to fix przces for v1tamms B1, BZ 136

B C, and folic aczd

52. Roche was delegated by BASF to speak on its behaif at the Takecia meetings.
BASF was then given quotas discussing during the meetings. According to BASF records,
“Pursuant to this arrangement with Takeda, Hoffmann La Roche instructed BASF as to the prices
and volumes of vitamin B1 that BASF could resell on a region by region basis,” Takeda agreed
. to target prices and lowest prices for a range of vitamins on a U.S. dollar basis for the United
States and els.-ewhéré.' On occés_ion, Takeda and BASF also had bilateral meetihgs which included
discussions on vitamin B1.

53, InJuly 1991, representatives of Roche and BASF met to agree on a cartel
framework for vitamin B2. The companies agreed on global market shares and quotas. Roche
and BASF executives thereafler separately traveled to meet with Takeda to convince Takeda to
agree to the market allocations and “the new price policy to increase the price continuously.”

54.  Meetings concerning vitamin B2 were held on a quarterly basis to implement the
cartel consistent with the above described cartel conduct. Meetings were held usually first
between Roche and Takeda and then between Roche and BASF. A Takeda minute of a meeting

with Roche in May 1993 headed “Destroy after reading™ states “Prices are rising smoothly.” A



Takeda minute of November 1992 meeting with Roche similarly states: *“With regards to price,
we will support R’s policy fully and work towards obtaining the lowest price of US $69.00 CIF.”

55.  Takeda regularly agreed with Roche and BASF on price increases for “list” and
“lowest” prices by region, including North America, for different vitamins

56. A representatlve of Roche v1s;ted Danchl in December 1990 to insist that Daiichi
restrict Its output of v1tam1n BS (calpan) Meetmgs were thereaﬁer held between Roche BASF
and Danchl in the first quarter of 1991 and agam later in mid 1991 in which the parties exchanged )
‘- ‘sales mformat_lon by region, mcludmg No:th America, for v1tam1n'BS and vitamin BG. The |
parties agreed on anr allocation ‘(‘)f the world market .f(‘)r vitamins B‘S and B6 and to quétas ona
worldwide an(i fegionai basis, includi‘ng North America. |

57.  Meetings were also held between Roche, Takeda and Daiichi for the purpose of
reaching the agreements on vitamin B6. Daiichi and Takeda also were in regular contact
concerning the vitamins they produced.

58. | The agreemen;[s Wiﬂ‘l Dai-ichi‘ Wére implemented by global meetings held én a
quarterly basis. Top level and operational meetings, including Daiichi, took place regularly. To
enforce the quotas, sales information was exchanged on a quarterly and later a monthly basis.
Daiichi aiso agreed to concerted price increases, including target prices.

59.  The cartel was concerned with worldwide prices, in part, to ensure that price
differentials between the United States and other regions did not undercut the cartel. For
example, when the dollar became strong in relation to European currencies, the cartel raised
prices in Europe to deter dealers in Europe from selling to the United States.

60.  The cartel also was concerned with quotas both worldwide and for each country,

particularly the United States. A 1991 Takeda report of a meeting with Roche concerning sales



quotas notes that Roche “it is not enough to exchange the figures of key clients, but is necessary
to fix the figures country by country to attain our policy.” The Takeda report also included a list
of minimum prices in each national currency.

61.  The cartel participants normally agreed that one producer should first announce
price increases in a tragie jemai_or in direct communication with-major customers. These price
inéreasés‘includéd‘ prices in’ Miésissippi and werel made wifhiﬂ Milésissip;l)i.' Ohée thé iarice_ “

" mcrease ‘was announced by one cartel member the others would generaﬁy follow suit.

62 After the ﬂhng of a class action and the subsequent annotmeement in Iate 1997 of a
U S. grand jury mvestlgatlon, senior executlves of the Club decided to’continue the cartel ona
more discrete basis. It was decided there would be no more group meetings and one-on-one
contacts only as necessary. Senior executives exchanged monthly sales data from their private
homes to continue to monitor quota allocations.

63.  Following the 1995 announcement of a criminal investigation concerning citric
acid Roché, BASF, Rhone Poulenc and Takdea al] agreéd.that any contacts -between‘them at the
level of their U.S. subsidiaries would be suspended. According to a meeting note, “This is
because R USA has been requested to submit documents in connection with citric acid.”2.

2. Hlegal Exchanges of Information to Facilitate the Conspiracy

64.  For purposes of forming and carrying out the charged combination and
conspiracy, defendants exchanged information on the volumes of sales of vitamins A, C, B, BI,
B2, B3, B5, B6, B9, B12, H, beta carotene, astaxanthin, canthaxanthin and vitamin premixes in
Mississippi and elsewhere, for the purpose of monitoring and enforcing adherence to the agreed-

upon prices, sales volumes and market allocations.



3. Additional Facilitating Practices and Agreements

65.  For purposes of carrying out the charged combination and conspiracy, defendants
rigged bids for contracts to supply vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B3, B35, B6, B9, B12, H, beta
carotene, astaxanthin, canthaxanthin and vitamin premixes.
~B. The Impermissible Effect on Mississippi Market

66.  Due to defendants przce fixing and market allocation éétmty, prlce 1ﬁcreases took
place in vitamins A C E Bl B2 B3 BS B6; BY, B12 H, beta carotene, astaxanthln,

" canthaxanthm and v1tamm premaxes desplte ﬂuctuatlons in the costs of production., As a result of
‘defendants’ conduct, prices were maintained at ali-tlme high levels from the beginning of the - |
1990s until the conspiracy was discovered.
67.  For many years, prices of vitamins and vitamin premixes did not follow the laws of
supply and demand existing in a competitive market. Price reductions, fqr example, did not
. follow increases in Suppiy

68. F urther due to defendants pnce fixing, market allocation, and other antb
competitive conduct, prices increased even as new supply and production came on the market.

69.  The foregoing conduct continued until at least 1998 and the effect of the foregoing
conduct is continuing. Executives of defendants continued until at least 1998 to discuss price
fixing and market allocation, both by telephone (wireline and cellular) and in person. The
purpose of these communications was to manage the markets for vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B3,
B3, B6, B9 B12, H, beta carotene, astaxanthin, canthaxanthin, and vitamin premixes.

70.  The alleged combination and conspiracy has had the following effects, among
others:

(a) The price of vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B3, B5, B6, B9, B12, H, beta



carotene, astaxanthin, canthaxanthin, and vitamin premixes purchased by Mississippi purchasers
was fixed, raised, maintained and stabilized at artificial and non-competitive levels;

(b) The price of substitute products for vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B3, B3, B6,
B9, B12, H, beta carotene, astaxanthin, canthaxanthin and vitamin premixes products purchased
by Mississippi purchasers was fixed, raised, maintained and stabilized at artificial and non
competitive levels; | R

©  Buyers of vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B3, -BS-,B6-,_B9;- BI12,H. 5eta_~ cérotene,' o

'a.stax‘émthin, canthaxanﬂnn, and vitamin I;rem_i)ées; including M‘iséiséippi purchasers, Wéfé o
deprived of free ‘aﬁd opén competition in thé purchase of vitamins A, C, E, Bi , B2, B3, BS‘, B6,
B9, B12, H, beta carotene, astaxanthin; canthaxantﬁin, and vitamin preﬁiixes; and

(d) Competition in the sale of vitamins A, C, E, B1, B2, B3, B5, B6, B9, B12,
H, beta carotene, astaxanthin, canthaxanthin, and vitamin premixes was restrained.

- 71. . During the period covered by this Complaint, the State of Mississippi and ifs
citizens lpufchasled vitamins and vitamin premixes madé by'defendants. By reason of the alleged .
violations of Mississippi law, the State and its citizens paid more for vitamins and vitamin
premixes and substitute products than they would have paid in the absence of the illegal
combination and conspiracy and, as a result, have been injured in its business and property and
suffered damages in an amount to be proved at trial.

72.  During the period covered by this Complaint, millions of dollars of vitamins were
purchased in Mississippi, directly or indirectly, at above market prices as a result of defendants’
illegal conduct. Consequently, Mississippi purchasers have been damaged in an amount to be
provided at trial as a result of defendants’ illegal actions. Mississippi has a quasi-sovereign

interest in protecting Mississippi consumers from such unlawful conduct and the ensuing



damages.

VII. MISSISSIPPI MONOPOLY

73. Defendants, their co-conspirators, agents, employees have sold and distributed
vitamins to the State of Mississippi, its consumers, commercial vendors, farmers, and stores.
These transactions were wholly intrastate. Ben Whltesxde a techmcal sales representatwe of the
ammal nutrition d1v1310n of the BASF Corporatlon is an example of one of the co- consplratot 8

employees that'aided and aSSISted in creatmn and the mamtenance of the lntrastate monopoly in’

o MlSSlSSlppI in the vitamin market

- 74. Defendants"' vitamin monopoly in Mississippi’s intrastate commérc'e wéts otle of the
mattcrial objects of its interstate conspiratcy. Thle vitamin intrastate monopoly of Mississippi wasl
material to the maintenance of the vitamin interstate monopoly and the monopoly of the
commerce of Mississippi was a factor in bringing about the interstate a monopoly. These wholly
intrastate transactions were critical to the creation and the‘maintenance of the Defendants’ illegal .
monopaly

75. Defendants have sold illegally overpriced vitamins to Mississippi farmers, like
Sanderson Farms, which in turn sold the illegally overpriced vitamins to grocery stores in
Mississippi, restaurants in Mississippi and/or consumers in Mississippi.

76. One of the Defendants’ co-conspirators, BASF Corporation, retained an agent so it
could conduct wholly intrastate activities that monopolized the market in Mississippi.

77. Defendants and its agents, employees, vendors, manufacturers, partners and co-
conspirators accomplished its illegal monopoly in the vitamin market in Mississippi in part by
transactions which are wholly intrastate, i.e., contracting with Mississippi residents through their

contractual agreements; selling its vitamins directly in Mississippi through its agents, employees,



partners, manufacturers, and co-conspirators; advertising through its agents, employees, partners,
and co-conspirators in Mississippi; and, distributing its products in the state of Mississippi
through its agents, employees, partners, manufacturers, and co-conspirators.

78. Each and every sale of the Defendants’ vitamin products in Mississippi restrained
trade, mcreased the pr1ce limited the productlon hmdered competltlon in the producllen, ‘
importatxon and transportatlon of vztamm products in MiSSlSSIppl |

VIIL DISCLAIMER OF FEDERAL CLAIMS
79. The Piamtsz hereby d1scIa1m any rehef under any federal statute law, rule or
* regulation, and no claims are made pursuant to the same. | |

IX. CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

COUNT ONE
RESTITUTION / UNJUST ENRICHMENT

80. The State realleges and incorporates herein the foregoing allegations of this Amended
| .Complair'ﬂ';. -

81. By common law and the Missiésiippi Code, the befehdants should refund any and all
illegal overcharges for vitamins purchased directly and indirectly by the State of Mississippi and

its citizens.

COUNTTWO
MISSISSIPPI ANTITRUST ACT

82. The State realleges and incorporates herein the foregoing allegations of this Amended
Complaint.

83. The Defendants’ actions complained of herein violates the provisions of Mississippi
law governing “Trusts and Combines in Restraint or Hindrance of Trade,” Miss. Code Ann. § 75-
21-1 et seq.

84. The Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages, punitive damages, statutory damages, and



civil penalties for the State of Mississippi, its corporations, and its citizens.

COUNT THREE
MISSISSIPPI CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT

85. The State realleges and incorporates herein the foregoing allegations of this Amended
Complaint.
86. ~Th¢ Defendants™ gétioné complained of herein violate the provisions of Mississippi
-law governing “Regulation of Business for Consume;r Protection,” Miss. Code Ann. § 75-24-1 et
- _ . . o . . _
- 87 The‘.Pl'ai‘ntilflf seeks coméensétéry damages, puﬁiti‘}e dé.mages, civil penaltiés, and
: injunctive reliéf for .the Siate‘ of Mississ.:ippi and ﬁs- ci;tizeﬁ,‘sl..' . | o

COUNT FOUR
CIVIL CONSPIRACY

88. The State realleges and incorporates herein the foregoing allegations of this
Amended Complaint.

89. The Défendaﬁts’ actibﬁs cofnplained of herein constitute a combination of entities
for the purpose of accomplishing an unlawful purpose or a lawful purpose unlawfully.

90. The Plaintiff seeks compensatory and punitive damages for the State of Mississippi

and its citizens for the Defendants’ civil conspiracy.

X. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays for the following relief:

a. That plaintiff recover damages, as provided by law, determined to have been
sustained as a result of defendants’ violations of the Mississippi Antitrust Act, and that joint and
several judgments in favor of plaintiff, be entered against defendants, and each of them;

b. That piaintifff recover a penalty of up to $2,000 for each violation of the

Mississippi Antitrust Act, pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 75-21-7;



c. The plaintiff recovers a penalty of $500 for each injury sustained under the
Mississippi Antitrust Act, pursuant to Miss. Code. Ann. § 75-21 -9;

d. That the unlawful combination and conspiracy alleged herein be adjudged and
declared an unfair and deceptive trade practice in violation of the Mississippi Consumer
Protectlon Act, Mlss Code Ann. § 75 24 5;

e That plalntlff obtain rest1tut10n as prowded by law, for damaées determmed to
have been sustamed asa result Of defendants’ v101at10ns of the M:ssmsappz Consumer Pmtectlon ,
| Act pursﬁant to Miss Code Ann § 75u24-111' and that joint'anc‘i several judgments in favor-of :

' 'plamtlff be entered against defendants, and each of them,

f. That plaintiff recover a penalty of $10 000 for each vmlatlon of the MiSSlSSlppl
Consumer Protection Act, pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 75-24-19;

g. That the defendants be permanently enjoined from engaging in such a
combination or conspiracy in restraint of trade and in such unfair and dgceptive tr_adé practices in
the future and be enjoined from fuﬁher violations of the Mississippi Antitrust and Consumer
‘Protection Acts;

h. That plaintiff recover the costs of this suit, including reasonable attorneys' fees, as
provided by law; and

i That plaintiff be granted such other, further and different relief as the nature of the

case may require or as may be deemed just and proper by this court.
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